
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Community Safety, 
Environment and Residents 

Services Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Monday 30 January 2017 
7.00 pm 

Small Hall - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Larry Culhane (Chair) 
Councillor Iain Cassidy 
Councillor Sharon Holder 
 

Councillor Charlie Dewhirst 
Councillor Steve Hamilton 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Ainsley Gilbert 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 20 January 2017 
 
 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Community Safety, Environment and 
Residents Services Policy and 

Accountability Committee 
Agenda 

 
30 January 2017 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES  1 - 7 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2017. 
 

 

4.   2017 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS) 
 

8 - 23 

5.   STREET CLEANLINESS AND RECYCLING 
 

24 - 47 

6.   WORK PROGRAMME AND DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

48 - 52 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Community Safety, 
Environment and 

Residents Services 
Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Wednesday 16 November 2016 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Larry Culhane (Chair), Iain Cassidy, 
Charlie Dewhirst and Steve Hamilton 
 
Other Councillors: Sue Fennimore and Wesley Harcourt 
 
Officers: Karen Ashdown, Richard Buckley, Jardine Finn, Ullash Karia and Ann 
Ramage 
 

 
18. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2016 be approved as 
a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

19. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Sharon Holder. 
 

20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Item 5 – Revised Community Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 
Councillor Charlie Dewhirst explained that he was an employee of the Rugby 
Football Union and that he therefore had contact with Sport England, the 
organisation which it was hoped would fund some elements of the Council’s 
Community Sport and Physical Activity Strategy. This was not a pecuniary 
interest. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Item 6 – Safety at Sports Grounds 
Councillor Larry Culhane explained that he was a fan of Fulham Football Club 
which was subject to control by the Council’s Environmental Health team. 
 

21. URBAN ECOLOGY AND BIODIVERSITY IN H&F  
 
Richard Buckley, Head of Environmental Health (Residential), explained that 
biodiversity meant the variety of plants and wildlife in an area. He explained 
that biodiversity was important as species relied upon each other for survival 
as part of ecosystems. There were a number of laws which promoted 
biodiversity and protected habitats and species, as well as placing various 
duties on local authorities. 
 
The council had undertaken a biodiversity survey in 1988 which showed that 
14 percent of the borough was green space, and that 60 percent of that space 
was parks, sports pitches and amenity grassland under council control. There 
were also 13,000 trees on streets and housing estates. 
 
The air quality commission had made a recommendation for an Urban 
Ecology Plan to be drafted as well as for changes to the local plan and 
improvements to the way that the council managed its trees and planting. A 
number of other improvements were also going to be made to the Local 
Plan’s sections dealing with biodiversity as a result of its ongoing revision.  
 
The council was already doing lots of work to improve biodiversity, for 
example, banning the use of glyphosate weed killers, encouraging community 
planting schemes, building sustainable urban drainage schemes on highways 
and putting in green roofs and other environmentally friendly measures on its 
housing estates. The council was also supporting a campaign to protect fish 
living in the tidal Thames; the improvements in water quality had led to the 
Smelt fish now spawning in the Thames near to Hammersmith Bridge. 
 
Richard Buckley explained that the council now planned to draft an Ecology 
Policy based on these key principles: building a robust ecological network 
through the Local Plan and Air Quality Action Plan; putting people at the heart 
of biodiversity by engaging with local residents, schools, volunteers and 
environmental groups; reducing environmental pressures by creating new 
habitats, green corridors and stepping stones, and managing existing habitats 
well, and; improving our knowledge and understanding of the current position. 
He suggested that the council might wish to develop a specific biodiversity 
action plan and explained that there were opportunities to provide more, 
bigger, better and joined habitats, noting that housing controlled 45,000sqm 
of flat roofed buildings. 
 
Councillor Dewhirst suggested that a new biodiversity survey needed to be 
undertaken as the previous one was nearly 30 years old. He was also 
concerned that residents might unwittingly break the law by cutting back 
hedges at the request of highways officers and asked that letters to residents 
ask them to check if there were nesting birds in them before undertaking the 
work. Richard Buckley agreed to look into the issue of hedges being cut back.  
 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor Dewhirst felt that the council needed to do more to deal with the 
effect of glyphosate no longer being used as he had received complaints from 
residents regarding weeds growing in pavements. Councillor Harcourt 
explained that the council was trialling a number of different methods to 
control weeds in order to identify which worked best. The results of these 
trials would be available in a few months’ time, however, officers were 
working hard to ensure that the boroughs streets looked good in the 
meantime. Councillor Hamilton asked how Japanese Knotweeed was dealt 
with if not by glyphosate. Ullash Karia, Head of Leisure and Parks, explained 
that glyphosate would continue to be injected into Japanese Knotweed; this 
did not cause the same contamination problems as spraying and was far 
more effective.  
 
Rosemary Petit, Chair of the Air Quality Commission, explained that she felt 
the new focus on biodiversity was very important. She echoed Councillor 
Dewhirst’s view that a new survey was needed and suggested that citizen 
scientists could be used to help carry it out. Another resident suggested that 
community organisations, such as the urban studies centre, be asked to help 
engage schools in the project.  
 
Councillor Cassidy noted that the friends of Margravine Cemetery had 
recently received an award from London in Bloom for their work and that they 
had been very positive about the support they had been given by the council. 
He felt that good work such as this needed to be spread across the borough 
and that the council needed to develop a plan to join up habitats. He knew 
that residents felt strongly about biodiversity issues and felt that the council’s 
policies needed to reflect this. 
 
A resident said that urban guerrilla gardening might be a good way to engage 
residents. Richard Buckley explained that the council had given permission to 
residents to plant in various locations across the borough. He felt that a key 
part of the council’s role for the future would be to work out how to engage 
more residents in biodiversity.  
 
Ullash Karia asked whether the council had sufficient staff working in the area 
to ensure that biodiversity was promoted. Richard Buckley explained that 
there were many other pressures on council budgets so it might be difficult to 
fund a dedicated officer; there was however a great amount of experience 
amongst staff who worked in related fields. Rosemary Petit suggested that 
the council might be able to attract sponsorship for projects to improve bio-
diversity.  
 
The Chair explained that the administration had decided to set up a 
Residents’ Commission on Biodiversity to guide the council on how best to 
improve biodiversity. He explained that Morag Carmichael, Chair of 
Hammersmith and Fulham Friends of the Earth, had kindly agreed to lead the 
commission.  
 
Morag Carmichael said that she was both excited and a little daunted by the 
task of chairing the residents commission. She had already started discussing 
the idea in the community and there were lots of brilliant ideas and 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

enthusiastic people. There were also a fair number of challenges but she felt 
these could be overcome and that it was important that these were tackled for 
the sake of improving biodiversity. She hoped that the commission could 
bring biodiversity to life for residents and engage lots of people. She noted 
that the commission was indebted to the Air Quality Commission which had 
already started to look at ways in which biodiversity could be improved. 
Morag Carmichael explained that the council would be seeking more 
members of the commission over the coming weeks and encouraged anyone 
who was interested to apply. 
 
Councillor Wesley Harcourt said that the creation of a commission was an 
important step towards the administration’s aim of being the greenest council. 
He said that there was already great work being done to improve biodiversity 
in various council departments but that the residents commission could join 
the work up and identify where, perhaps, more could be done. He gave the 
commission his very best wishes for their work.  
 
The Chair thanked all present for their contributions to the debate and, on 
behalf of the committee, wished Morag Carmichael and the new commission 
every success. 
 

22. REVISED COMMUNITY SPORT AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY STRATEGY  
 
Ullash Karia, Head of Parks and Leisure, explained that sports and physical 
activity were great ways of enjoying yourself and getting fit at the same time. 
He explained that the council had drafted an ambitious strategy which aimed 
to engage residents as well as being a document which required action.  
 
Jardine Finn, Sports Development Manager, said that there was already great 
work on engaging people in physical activity being done in Hammersmith and 
Fulham. He noted particularly the St Mungo’s scheme to get homeless people 
to take part in sports and the recent disability tennis tournament staged in the 
borough. Mr Finn explained that the purpose of the strategy was to show the 
council’s commitment to involving more people in physical activity and to help 
the council to target its resources. Action plans would be developed to 
implement the strategy. 
 
The cost of supporting people who were not physically active was high and 
increasing whilst Public Health England had suggested that if being active 
was a pill, doctors would be rushing to prescribe it. There was already a good 
level of participation in physical activity in Hammersmith and Fulham but this 
needed to be increased further. Sport in school needed to be supported as 24 
percent of children living in the borough were classed as obese on leaving 
primary school. Breaking down barriers to disabled people participating was 
also important. 
 
The strategy’s priorities were: 

- Tackling inactivity 
- Ensuring that every child enjoys being active 
- Helping people to remain active, affordably 
- Supporting residents to develop grassroots sports 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

- Creating better physical activity environments 
- Developing evidence based approaches to improving participation 

 
The Community Sport and Physical Activity Network had been consulted on 
the strategy and had contributed to the current draft. The strategy was 
currently being consulted on via the council’s website. Ullash Karia explained 
that officers were keen to hear views from residents and stakeholders as the 
strategy needed to engage them. 
 
Councillor Dewhirst said that he was impressed with the strategy’s focus on 
inactive people; not only would inactive residents get a lot out of sport, there 
was also likely to be considerable funding available to help get them doing 
physical activity. Jardine Finn agreed and explained that partnerships with 
charities would also be important in securing grant funding.  
 
Natascia Bernardi, Action on Disability, explained that the charity had been 
working with the council and Sport England on a project to help disabled 
young people get into sport. They were doing this by working with local clubs 
to remove any barriers to participation, although there were some barriers 
such as specialist equipment which were difficult to overcome without 
sufficient funding. She said that the charity wanted to extend the scheme to 
adults and wanted to work with the council to bid for funding to do this. 
 
The Chair asked whether there had been a shift away from regular sport to 
more ad-hoc physical activity such as park runs. Jardine Finn said that this 
was certainly true nationally, although there was no local data on the trend. 
Funding from Sport England had been directed towards ad-hoc events which 
were likely to encourage inactive people to take part.  
 
Councillor Sue Fennimore explained that physical activity had the potential to 
improve a great many areas of people’s lives; it was good not only for 
physical wellbeing but also mental health. She hoped that socio-economic 
reasons for people being inactive could be tackled so that everyone could feel 
the benefits of being active. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for their presentation and work on the strategy, 
and those present for their contribution to the discussion and increasing 
activity in Hammersmith and Fulham. 
 

23. SAFETY AT SPORTS GROUNDS  
 
Ann Ramage, Head of Environmental Health (Commercial), explained that the 
council was responsible for ensuring safety at sports grounds in 
Hammersmith and Fulham. There were a minimum of 65 fixtures in the 
borough each season, although cup competitions and European games could 
increase this number to well over 100 in some years. This meant that there 
was a significant amount of work for officers to do to keep fans safe.  
 
Most of what the council did was collaborative work to point out potential 
problems and get those responsible to deal with these. All involved generally 
understood the importance of safety and the potential impact if things went 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

wrong so it was relatively easy to make improvements. Resident concerns 
were also dealt with by officers and all three clubs seemed keen to ensure 
that their neighbours were not adversely affected by games any more than 
necessary. 
 
There were also a number of formal mechanisms such as the Safety 
Certificate which allowed officers to set the number of spectators permitted in 
each stand. The capacity was determined by both the physical capacity of the 
stand and the safety management arrangements in place. Other formal 
aspects of the work included arranging and holding Safety Advisory Group 
(SAG) meetings which got all agencies and the club together to discuss the 
operation of the stadium and resolve any issues. If was not possible to invite 
fans into these meetings as some of the discussions were confidential, 
however, fans were now being involved in the work of SAGs by sharing the 
agenda with recognised groups and allowing them to put their views forward, 
either in writing, or if necessary in particular circumstances, in person.  
 
The main challenges to ensuring safety had been: 

- The attitudes of television companies and national and international 
governing bodies, in particular in relation to match scheduling. 

- The reduction in police support inside stadiums and the support 
needed by clubs to take on more responsibility for managing crowd 
behaviour. 

- The need to understand and respond to the different football cultures 
which existed outside of the UK when their teams came to play in the 
borough. 

- The difficulty of getting large numbers of fans into the stadium in a 
short period of time. 

 
The Chair asked what the cost of providing this service was. Ann Ramage 
explained that it was difficult to calculate the cost, as whilst there was a core 
team of three officers, there was also a lot of time spent by other officers from 
across the council on ensuring safety. She noted that Hammersmith and 
Fulham was unique in having three professional football teams within its 
boundaries. She also explained that the clubs were generally willing to pay for 
improvements which officers thought were necessary. 
 
Councillor Dewhirst asked how residents had responded to the extended 
closure of Fulham Road on Chelsea FC matchdays. Ann Ramage explained 
that the changes and the reasons for them had been well communicated and 
so very little feedback had been received. It had also simplified traffic 
management which had been welcomed by many, including London Buses. 
Vehicular access for residents was generally allowed even during closures, 
which was welcomed. 
 
Councillor Harcourt said that the amount of work done by officers to keep fans 
safe was impressive. The Chair thanked officers for their presentation and 
their work to keep fans, including himself, safe. 
 

24. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS AND WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

The date of the next meeting was noted to be 30 January 2017.  
 
The work programme was noted. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.05 pm 

 
 

Chair   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Ainsley Gilbert 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 7



 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT & RESIDENTS 

SERVICES POLICY AND ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

30 JANUARY 2017 
 

 
 

 

2017 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS) 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance – Councillor Max Schmid 

 
Report Status: Open 
 

Classification: For review and comment. 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director:  
Nicholas Austin – Lead Director for Environmental Services 
 

Report Authors:  
Corporate Overview  
Andrew Lord – Head of Strategic Planning 
and Monitoring.  
Hitesh Jolapara – Strategic Finance 
Director 
Environmental Services 
Mark Jones – Director for Finance and 
Resources  

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2501  
E-mail: hitesh.jolapara@lbhf.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8753 6700  
E-mail: mark.jones@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 Cabinet will present their revenue budget and council tax proposals to 
Budget Council on 22nd February 2017. A balanced budget will be set in 
accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 
 

1.2 This report sets out the budget proposals for the services covered by this 
Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC). An update is also provided on 
any changes in fees and charges.    

 

1.3 Government resource assumptions, that are used to calculate LBHF’s 
Government grant, model the council increasing council tax by 4% per 
year. However, in line with the administration’s policy of lowering the cost 
of the council to residents, this increase has not been proposed. Instead, 
the budget proposes to freeze council tax for the year.  

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4

mailto:hitesh.jolapara@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:mark.jones@lbhf.gov.uk


2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC) considers the budget 
proposals and makes recommendations to Cabinet as appropriate. 
 

2.2. That the PAC considers non-standard changes in fees and charges and makes 
recommendations as appropriate.  

 
3. SMARTER BUDGETING 

3.1 Since January 2016 the Council has adopted a new way of looking at how it 
spends money providing services for residents. The ‘Smarter Budgeting’ 
programme has focussed on developing service and cost improvement ideas to 
bridge the budget gap created by a reducing Government grant, new unfunded 
pressures from Government, inflation, and demographic changes. 

3.2 Eight outcomes have been agreed with a team focussed on service improvements 
and efficiency opportunities for each outcome. The outcomes are: 

 Economic Growth 

 The best start in life for children  

 Resident involvement 

 Decent homes 

 Reducing homelessness  

 Supporting vulnerable adults  

 Safer and healthier place  

 Cleaner, greener, sustainable borough 

A similar approach has been adopted for reviewing support services (enabling 
activities).  

3.3 Budgets and spend has been mapped against each of the outcomes. The teams 
have worked together to: analyse their cost base and activities; identify new and 
innovative ideas; and, develop the ideas into business cases to help meet our 
financial challenges and improve services for residents.  

3.4 Since Smarter Budgeting began brainstorming sessions have been held to 
generate new ideas for initiatives and money-saving exercises across the 
business involving staff as well as our partners. We've held workshops to 
investigate those ideas and ensure they were joined up across the council, 
eliminating duplication, increasing commercial acumen and putting collaboration 
at the forefront of our thinking. 

3.5 For each outcome, a number of business cases have been developed.  These 
include identifying new sources of income, service improvement and savings.  
Work is on-going to further develop and analyse proposals and the savings 
identified are included in this report. A case study from the Smarter Budgeting 
programme is set out below. 

Page 9



3.6 An example of a savings proposal that came from the Smarter Budgeting 
programme is the Cycle Street Furniture initiative which was developed by the 
Safer and Healthier outcome group. The idea is to use funding allocated from TfL 
to deliver a streetscape that will provide improved facilities for cyclists, 
encouraging more of our residents to cycle. The redesign of the streetscape and 
new cycle street furniture will provide the council with the opportunity to 
implement smart design that will reduce the burden on other council services. For 
example, larger bins to reduce service costs and sustainable drainage to reduce 
gully maintenance costs. It will also provide sponsorship opportunities that can be 
sold, through a concessionary contract, creating a new source of income. This 
initial benefit to the council is estimated at £0.075m in 2017/18. 

4. THE BUDGET GAP 

4.1 The 2017/18 budget gap, before savings, is £14.4m, rising to £46.3m by 
2020/21. 

Table 1: Budget Gap Before Savings 
 

Resources Assumptions 

 
4.2 A cash cut in central government funding of £8.1m from 2016/17 to 2017/18. 

By 2020/21 a further reduction of £19.8m is forecast.  
 
4.3 A Council Tax freeze is modelled with no use of the adult social care precept. 

Authorities can opt to levy a maximum adult social care precept of 3% in 2017/18 
and up to 6% by 2019/20. A 3% precept would raise £1.65m for LBHF. Central 
Government grant assumptions are based on LBHF raising council tax and the 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Base Budget 160.4 160.4 160.4 160.4 

Add:         

- Inflation (includes pay) 2.8 6.3 9.7 13.1 

- headroom for future 
pressures 

0 3.0 6.0 9.0 

- Growth  7.3 7.1 7.1 7.1 

Budgeted Expenditure 170.5 176.0 182.4 188.8 

Less:         

- Government Resources (42.3) (32.9) (26.3) (22.5) 

- LBHF Resources (111.8) (114.8) (116.8) (118.0) 

- Use of Developer 
Contributions 

(2.0) (2.0) (2.0) (2.0) 

Budgeted Resources (156.1) (149.2) (144.3) (142.4) 

         

Cumulative Budget Gap 
Before Savings 

14.4 26.8 38.1 46.3 

     

Risks 22.7 27.4 29.5 30.9 

Page 10



precept by a combined 4% per year to 2019/20.  The administration, however, 
has a commitment to reduce the cost of the council to residents and will be 
resisting this.  

 
4.4 Business rates are modelled to increase with inflation with allowance made for 

the Westfield expansion. The Westfield expansion is expected to open in October 
2017 with floor space increasing by 40%. An allowance of £3m per annum 
(£0.75m in 2017/18) is made for the potential Hammersmith and Fulham share 
(30%)1 of the extra business rates income from the Westfield expansion. 

 
4.5 A business rates revaluation, undertaken by the Valuation Office (central 

government) is effective from 1 April 2017. Gross Rateable Value in Hammersmith 
and Fulham is expected to increase by a total of 36% - our current baseline is 
£428m. The Council is deeply concerned about how this will impact local 
businesses. In addition, the rate increase will disadvantage the council, as it has 
to pay extra rates on its properties and will need to set aside extra sums for 
appeals from businesses. The Council gets no benefit from the extra income 
generated as it is redistributed to other parts of the country.  The implications of 
the revaluation continue to be worked through. 

 
4.6 Property developments have placed increased pressure on council services in 

recent years. The budget strategy provides for use of £2m of developer 
contributions to support relevant expenditure arising from developments.  

 
 
5 GROWTH, SAVINGS AND RISKS 
 
5.1 The growth and savings proposals for the services covered by this PAC are set 

out in Appendix 1 with budget risks set out in Appendix 2.  

Growth 
 

 5.2 Budget growth is summarised by Service Area in Table 2.  
 
Table 2: 2017/18 Growth Proposals 

 

Service Area/ Outcome £’m 

Adult Social Care 4.413 

Children’s Services 0.739 

Environmental Services 0.255 

Housing  0.230 

Enabling/Council wide 1.712 

                                            
1
 Under the current rates retention scheme Hammersmith and Fulham retains 30% of business rates 

growth. 50% is payable to Government and 20% to the Greater London Authority (GLA). In 2017/18 
the Hammersmith and Fulham share will remain 30%. The split between the GLA and Government 
will change as the Government devolves more funding streams to the GLA. The GLA share will 
become 37% and the Government 33%.   

Page 11



Total Growth 7.349 

 
5.3 The growth proposals include use of a new one-off Adult Social Care Support 

Grant of £0.922m and an ongoing increase in support through the Better Care 
Fund of £0.831m. The Better Care Fund income will increase to £4.4m in 
2018/19 and £7.5m in 2019/20.    

   
Savings 
 

5.4 The council faces a continuing financial challenge due to overall Central 
Government funding cuts, unfunded burdens, inflation, and growth pressures. 
The budget gap will increase in each of the next three years if no action is taken 
to reduce expenditure, generate more income through commercial revenue or 
continue to grow the number of businesses in the borough. 

 
5.5 To close the budget gap for 2017/18 savings (including additional income) of 

£14.9m are proposed (Table 3).  
 

  Table 3: 2017/18 Savings Proposals 
 

Service Area Savings  
£’m 

Enabling services (back office costs) (7.108) 

Increased income from Adult Learning and Skills  (0.095) 

Children’s Services (1.870) 

Libraries (0.382) 

Housing  (1.256) 

Adult Social Care (1.885) 

Environmental Services (0.290) 

Public Health contract efficiencies (2.000) 

Total All savings (14.886) 

Less savings accounted for in the grant/resource 
forecast2 

0.475 

Net Savings (14.411) 

 
 

Budget Risk 
 

5.6 The Council’s budget requirement for 2017/18 is £156.1m. Within a budget of this 
magnitude there are inevitably areas of risk and uncertainty particularly within the 
current challenging financial environment. The key financial risks that face the 
council have been identified and quantified. They total £22.7m. Those that relate 
to this PAC are set out in Appendix 2. The majority of these risks centre around 
the ability to deliver against new and existing commercial income targets whilst 
addressing resident concerns. Service managers will work closely with the 
Commercial Director and Finance team to closely monitor, manage and report 
during the year. 

                                            
2
 The council has undertaken business intelligence projects that have generated extra grant and 

council tax income of £0.475m. These are shown within the resource forecast. 

Page 12



 
 
6 FEES AND CHARGES 

 
6.1 The budget strategy assumes: 

 Adult Social Care, Children’s Services, Parking, Libraries and Housing 

charges frozen 

 A standard uplift of 1.8% based on the August Retail Price index for other 

charges 

 Case by case review for commercial services that are charged on a for-
profit basis. These will be varied up and down in response to market 
conditions, with relevant Member approval.  

 
6.2 A number of charges are being frozen for 2017/18, covering the vast majority of 

the revenue in the service raised through fees and charges.  Parking charges, 
including residents permits, bay suspensions and pay and display charges will not 
increase. CCTV will remain unchanged to enable these services to remain 
competitive with the aim of sustaining demand and income levels. Fees and 
charges proposals for Markets and Street Trading are subject to separate 
consultation with Traders and will therefore be the subject of a separate cabinet 
member decision. Licensing fees are being reviewed in light of a recent Supreme 
Court ruling and will also be the subject of a separate cabinet member decision. 
Fees for the Registration of Births, Deaths and Marriages are also being reviewed 
to ensure that the commercial elements of this service remain competitive. 
Proposals will be reported to the cabinet member as a separate decision. 

 

6.3 The council has taken over the running of the Thursday Lyric Square market from 
the former private operator.  As a result, in the coming year stallholders will 
receive the full benefit from lower charges.  Traders used to pay the private 
operator in the region of £70 - £80 per day for a stall on Lyric Square.  The council 
will be charging £50.90, plus £2 if the stallholder wants a refuse bag.  A trader 
working one day a week for 48 weeks per year will save at least £800 per year. 

6.4 It is also proposed to continue in 2017/18 with a special deal for new traders in 
block 7 of North End Road market.  New traders will be able to take advantage of 
a buy one get one free stall hire offer and reduced fees for six months.  A 
stallholder will be able to book a pitch on one day for £10 and they will get the 
next one free (the normal price per day would be £20.75). 

 2017/18 COUNCIL TAX LEVELS 

7.1 The administration proposes to freeze the Hammersmith and Fulham’s element 
of 2017/18 Council Tax. This will provide a balanced budget whilst recognising 
the burden on local taxpayers. 

 

Page 13



7.2 The Mayor of London’s draft budget is currently out for consultation and is due to 
be presented to the London Assembly on 25th January, for final confirmation of 
precepts on 20th February. 

 
7.3 As part of the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement the government 

announced that authorities can charge a 3% adult social care precept. Council 
does not wish to apply this tax to residents, so it does not form part of the 
2017/18 budget proposals. 

. 
7.4 Following last year’s council tax freeze, the current Band D Council Tax charge is 

the 3rd lowest in England3. The Band D charge for Hammersmith and Fulham is 
the lowest since 1999/2000. 

 
8 Comments of the Lead Director for Environmental Services on the Budget 

Proposals 
 

8.1 The Environmental Services Group (ESG) is proposing a total controllable 
expenditure budget of £70.7m of which £63.1m is expected to be recovered 
through income. The total controllable net budget is therefore £7.6m. In addition to 
this are corporate charges and income, which are not controlled by the service 
group, totalling a net £14.9m. This is shown in table 4. 
 

Table 4 – Environmental Services Budget 2017/18 
 

Directorate 
Expenditure 

£000 
Income 

£000 
Total 
£000 

Transport and Highways 7,538 (5,047) 2,491 

Parking 8,491 (34,574) (26,083) 

Environmental Health 2,959 (1,248) 1,712 

Building and Property Management 10,766 (5,491) 5,275 

Planning 3,184 (3,128) 56 

Cleaner, Greener and Cultural Services 24,756 (5,128) 19,629 

Safer Neighbourhoods 11,055 (6,967) 4,088 

Other Commercial Services 541 (647) (106) 

Administrative Support, Finance & 
Resources 1,451 (863) 588 

Total Controllable Budgets 70,742 (63,093) 7,649 

Capital Charges 14,366 0 14,366 

Public Health Investment 0 (551) (551) 

Corporate & Departmental Overheads 10,067 (8,954) 1,113 

Total Corporately Managed Budgets 24,433 (9,505) 14,928 

Total ES Budgets 95,174 (72,598) 22,577 

 

8.2 Included in the proposed budget for 2017/18 are savings (including income and 
outside investment) proposals totalling £2.38m. As set out in Table 5 (and detailed 

                                            
3
 Excluding the Corporation of London 

Page 14



in Appendix 1) these proposals have been brought forward through several 
Outcome Teams. 
 
 
Table 5 – 2017/18 Environmental Services Department Savings by Service 
Area 
 

 £’000s 

Enabling (back office) 1,240 

Environmetal Services (Table 3) 290 

Housing 300 

Public Health Investment 550 

Total 2,380 

 
 

8.3  The proposed budget also includes budget growth of £0.118m. In addition a 
provision of £0.137m is held corporately for the implementation of safer weed 
treatment methods. 
 

Transport and Highways 
8.4 The proposed savings of £190k are made up by designing cycle street furniture to 

reduce service costs and increase potential sponsorship revenue (£75k), the 
creation of a transport planning consultancy service (£55k), a review of the street 
naming charges (£11k) and savings in energy and maintenance from the roll out 
of LED street lighting (£49k). 
 
Parking 

8.5 The rollout of cashless parking has begun in 2016-17. Early indications show an 
increase in total receipts uptake of parking due to easier payments. There have 
also been a reduction in the numbers of penalty charge notices issued as parkers 
are less likely to overstay. The overall impact is estimated to result in additional 
income of £250k.  
 

8.6 There is also a decision yet to be made about introducing parking controls to 
prevent misuse of the car park in Hurlingham Park. This is dependent on a 
consultation with local residents. If that decision is made the assumption in the 
budget is that the increase in income may be £87k, depending on demand.  If the 
council decides not to introduce controls to solve the parking problems in the car 
park in Hurlingham Park, the increase will be nil. 

 
 

 
Environmental Health 

8.7 Formalisation of the shared management structure for the corporate health and 
safety team has saved £25k. Additional and selective licensing for private 
landlords is to be introduced in 2017-18 in order to improve the private rented 
sector and ensure safe homes for our residents. The licence fees will be set to 
cover the full cost of providing the service. This is expected to contribute £300k 
towards staffing and overheads that will be used in the delivery of the schemes. 
New Public Health investment in environmental health (£297k) will provide 

Page 15



continued funding for improving housing standards, air quality, healthier catering 
commitment, healthier workplace charter, tobacco control and safeguarding of 
elderly and vulnerable adults from financial exploitation. 
 
Building and Property Management 

8.8 The re-tender of an existing advertising site and the identification of some new 
sites is expected to generate additional income annually of £453k from 2017-18. 
 
Planning 

8.9 A target has been set to realise £180k of efficiencies in the planning department 
through a review of high volume transactions and how they are processed. This 
will also have the objective of making the service easier to use.  
 
Cleaner, Greener and Cultural Services (CGCS) 

8.10 The CGCS directorate is targeting efficiencies of £223k from 2017/18. These are 
predominantly concerned with generating new commercial income from the 
Council’s assets. Additional income of £100k is being targeted from the corporate 
commercial team from expanding the number of events and markets in the 
borough. A further £50k of income is being targeted from expanding the number of 
council venues and locations available for filming and hire. A new street cleansing 
service will be offered to private land and road owners, which is expected to 
generate £5k of new income. New Public Health investment in community libraries 
(£8k) means that this valued service is protected for another year. A targeted 
reduction in general waste and increase in recycling is expected to reduce waste 
disposal costs by £60k per year. A new Arts Officer post is included in the budget 
for 2017/18. This is to be fully funded from external income and so is provided at 
no additional cost to the Council. Budget growth of £38k is included in the budget 
from 2017/18 to fund a pioneering Street Czar post. This post will work with 
communities to tackle street scene issues and improve street cleanliness. 
 

Safer Neighbourhoods 
8.11 The Safer Neighbourhoods directorate is targeting efficiencies of £376k from 

2017/18. These are predominantly concerned with generating new commercial 
income. Additional income of £130k is being targeted from a new deployable 
CCTV service (£100k), expansion of the Professional Witness service (£20k), 
trialling new flower stalls (£5k) and by offering a new digital genealogy service for 
cemetery and bereavement services (£5k). New Public Health investment in 
Community Safety (£64k) and sports development (£182k) means that the Council 
can continue to invest in these vital services for another year. Budget growth of 
£80k is included to address the long term loss of income in the fleet management 
service, resulting from reductions in the council’s vehicle fleet as services were 
contracted out. 

 
9 Equality Implications 

 
9.1 A draft Equality Impact Analysis (EIA), which assesses the impacts on equality of 

the main items in the budget proposals relevant to this PAC, is attached as 
Appendix 4. A final EIA will be reported to Budget Council. 

 
 

Page 16



 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 
None. 
 
List of Appendices 
Appendix 1 – Savings and Growth Proposals 
Appendix 2 – Risks 
Appendix 3 - Fees and Charges Not Increasing at the Standard Rate 
Appendix 4 – Draft Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 17



Environmental Services Budget Proposals Appendix 1

MTFS Growth

Service Description

2017-18 

Budget 

Change 

(£000's)

2018-19 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative    

(£000's) 

2019-20 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2020-21 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

CGCS Introduce Street Czar post to work with communities to improve street cleanliness 38 38 38 38

SND Set fleet management budgets in line with current service demand 80 80 80 80

Total Growth 118 118 118 118

MTFS Savings

Service Description

2017-18 

Budget 

Change 

(£000's)

2018-19 

Budget 

Change 

(£000's)

2019-20 

Budget 

Change 

(£000's)

2020-21 

Budget 

Change 

(£000's)

Enabling Outcome

Parking Cashless parking (250) (250) (250) (250)

Parking Ending unregulated use of Hurlingham car park (87) (87) (87) (87)

Building and Property Management Increased advertising revenue (453) (675) (675) (675)

Planning Planning application efficiencies (180) (180) (180) (180)

Culture Markets and events income (100) (100) (100) (100)

Culture Improved utilisation of venues / locations (50) (100) (100) (100)

Environmental Services Outcome

Enabling Outcome

P
age 18



Environmental Services Budget Proposals Appendix 1

MTFS Growth

Service Description

2017-18 

Budget 

Change 

(£000's)

2018-19 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative    

(£000's) 

2019-20 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2020-21 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

Community Safety Deployable CCTV (100) (100) (100) (100)

Community Safety Professional Witness (20) (20) (20) (20)

Total Enabling Outcome Savings in Environmental Services Department (1,240) (1,512) (1,512) (1,512)

Environmental Services Outcome Savings

Transport & Highways Cycle street furniture initiative (75) (125) (150) (150)

Transport & Highways Transport Planning Consultancy (55) (65) (66) (66)

Transport & Highways Savings through the roll out of Light Emitting Diode Lighting across the borough (49) (213) (213) (213)

Transport & Highways Review street naming charges (11) (11) (11) (11)

Environmental Health Shared management of corporate health and safety (25) (25) (25) (25)

Waste & Street Enforcement Targeted reduction in general waste and increased recycling (60) (60) (60) (60)

Waste & Street Enforcement Provide street cleansing service to private land / road owners (5) (5) (5) (5)

Leisure & Parks Flower stall (5) (5) (5) (5)

Leisure & Parks Provide a digital genealogy service for Cemetery & Bereavement services (5) (7) (10) (13)

Total Environmental Services Outcome Savings in Environmental Services Department (290) (516) (545) (548)

Housing Outcome Savings

Environmental Health Contribution to overheads to cover operation of private sector licencing scheme. (300) (300) (300) (300)

Total Housing Outcome Savings in Environmental Services Department (300) (300) (300) (300)

P
age 19



Environmental Services Budget Proposals Appendix 1

MTFS Growth

Service Description

2017-18 

Budget 

Change 

(£000's)

2018-19 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative    

(£000's) 

2019-20 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

2020-21 

Budget 

Change 

Cumulative  

(£000's)

Public Health Outcome Savings

Environmental Health Public Health investment in Environmental Health (297) (297) (297) (297)

Culture Public Health investment in Hurlingham Community Library (8) (8) (8) (8)

Community Safety Public Health investment in Community Safety (64) (64) (64) (64)

Community Safety Public Health investment in Sports Development (182) (182) (182) (182)

Total Public Health Outcome Savings in Environmental Services Department (550) (550) (550) (550)

Total Efficiency Savings (2,380) (2,878) (2,907) (2,910)

P
age 20



APPENDIX 2

Environmental Services Budget Risks

Division Short Description of Risk

2017/18 

Value 

£000k

2017/18 

Value 

£000k

2018/19  

Value 

£000k

2019/20 

Value 

£000k

Mitigating Actions

Environmental Services

Buildings and Property 

Management
Increase in advertising revenue not feasible             100             100             100             100 

Work with the Commercial Director to 

develop and alternative implement plans. 

Review post planning permission decision 

and local consultation.

Buildings and Property 

Management

Fall in advertising revenue if economic 

conditions change
            500             500             500             500 

Ensure tender process is run effectively and 

according to schedule.

Parking
Parking suspension income falls if there is a 

drop in economic activity
            500             500             500             500 

Regular finance review and reporting through 

Parking Control Board and DMT. 

Cleaner, Greener & 

Cultural Services

Business case for new Events saving may not 

be viable
            100             100             100             100 

Work with the Commercial Director to 

develop and implement plans. Regular 

finance review and reporting through DMT 

and Commercial Board

Cleaner, Greener & 

Cultural Services

Increasing number of households may result in 

higher waste collection costs
            298             411             519             626 

Regular finance review and reporting through 

DMT. Continue to progress action plans to 

target reductions in general waste tonnages 

and increase recycling.

Safer Neighbourhoods
New deployable CCTV income target may not 

be met if demand does not materialise
            100             100             100             100 

Work with the Commercial Director to 

develop and implement plans. Regular 

finance review to monitor service demand. 

Report through DMT and Commercial Board

Other Commercial 

Services

Duct Asset Concession Contract income target 

not achieved
            290             290             290             290 

Work with the Commercial Director and 

concession holder to identify new large 

contracts. Regular finance review to monitor 

concession holder’s performance. Set aside 

departmental reserves.

Various
Extra costs of apprenticeship levy may not be 

met from new savings
            109             109             109             109 

Use apprentices to fill existing and vacant 

roles where appropriate. Charge all 

appropriate training costs to the 

apprenticeship levy.

Environmental Services Total          1,997          2,110          2,218          2,325 

P
age 21



Appendix 3

Fees and Charge 2017-18 Exceptions to the inflationary 1.8% increase

Service Fee Description Sub Category
2016-17 

Fee (£)

2017-18 

Fee (£)
% Change Reason for exception to inflationary increase

Parking Permits Individual's first permit (6mths) 71.00 71.00 0.0%

Parking Permits Individual's second permit (6mths) 260.00 260.00 0.0%

Parking Permits Individual's first permit (Yearly) 119.00 119.00 0.0%

Parking Permits Individual's second permit (Yearly) 497.00 497.00 0.0%

Parking Permits
Discounted permit charges (Green 

vehicles)
60.00 60.00 0.0%

Parking Permits Business first permit (6mths) 464.00 464.00 0.0%

Parking Permits Business second permit (6mths) 735.00 735.00 0.0%

Parking Permits Business first permit (Yearly) 791.00 791.00 0.0%

Parking Permits Business second permit (Yearly) 1,310.00 1,310.00 0.0%

Parking Permits Doctors 125.00 125.00 0.0%

Parking Pay and Display Zone A 2.80 2.80 0.0%

Parking Pay and Display Zone A - Visitor's 1.80 1.80 0.0%

Suspension of Parking Bay 1-5 Days 40.00 40.00 0.0%

Suspension of Parking Bay 6-42 Days 60.00 60.00 0.0%

Suspension of Parking Bay 43 days + 80.00 80.00 0.0%

Community Safety Stray Dogs Return of Stray Dogs to Owners 25.00 25.00 0.0%

Community Safety Stray Dogs Statutory fee 25.00 25.00 0.0%

Community Safety Stray Dogs Administration Fee 25.00 25.00 0.0%

Community Safety Stray Dogs Kennelling (per day) 12.50 12.50 0.0%

Neighbourhood Wardens Patrols
Neighbourhood Warden Patrols 

(per hour)
100.00 100.00 0.0% Price freeze to remain competitive.

Anti Social Behaviour Investigations Casework (per hour) 100.00 100.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Investigations
Professional Witness Service 

(per hour)
50.00 50.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Pin  hole camera hire - charge 

per day
10.00 10.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Pin hole camera with briefcase 

hire - charge per day
25.00 25.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Lipstick camera hire - charge per 

day
10.00 10.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Lipstick camera with briefcase 

hire - charge per day
25.00 25.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Door viewer camera hire - charge 

per day
10.00 10.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Door viewer camera with 

briefcase hire - charge per day
25.00 25.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Large zoom camera hire - charge 

per day
15.00 15.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Large zoom camera with 

briefcase hire - charge per day
25.00 25.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire Polecam hire - charge per day 50.00 50.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Door viewer camera (housed) 

hire - charge per day
15.00 15.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Metal hide with camera hire - 

charge per day
25.00 25.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Notice board camera hire - 

charge per day
25.00 25.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Fire sign camera hire - charge 

per day
25.00 25.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Motion sensor camera hire - 

charge per day
20.00 20.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Briefcase camera plus audio hire - 

charge per day
50.00 50.00 0.0%

Anti Social Behaviour Camera hire
Camera equipped vehicle hire - 

charge per day
50.00 50.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras Survey (per hour) 25.00 25.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras Individual PoleCam (set up) 400.00 400.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras
Individual PoleCam (charge per 

day)
100.00 100.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras
Individual PoleCam (charge per 

week)
600.00 600.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras
Individual PoleCam (charge per 

calendar month)
1,800.00 1,800.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras Two PoleCams (set up) 600.00 600.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras Two PoleCams (charge per day) 180.00 180.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras
Two PoleCams (charge per 

week)
1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

CCTV 4G Deployable CCTV cameras
Two PoleCams (charge per 

calendar month)
3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

CCTV Footage analysis
Forensic review of recorded 

footage (per hour)
30.00 30.00 0.0%

CCTV Footage analysis
Forensic review of recorded 

footage (per day)
200.00 200.00 0.0%

Parking fees are considered in the context of 

Parking Policy

Price freeze as 2016/17 charges have not yet 

been introduced.

Price freeze as 2016/17 charges have not yet 

been introduced.

Price freeze as 2016/17 charges have not yet 

been introduced.

Price freeze to remain competitive.

Page 22



Appendix 4 
    

1 
 

        

 

DRAFT Equality Impact Analysis (EIA) 

Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services  

Budget Proposals 2017/18 

 

1.1 Environmental Services is targeting efficiencies of £2.38m from 2017/18. The 

majority of the savings proposed are concerned with generating new 

commercial income, spend efficiencies and back office staff. As such there 

are no adverse equality implications for any particular groups with protected 

characteristics. Where there are staff changes leading to savings, Equality 

Impact Assessments are carried out as part of the reorganisation process. 

1.2 The £0.30m contribution to reserves from introducing additional and selective 
private landlord licensing is not expected to have any negative equality 
impacts. The policy seeks to set minimum housing standards for safety and 
amenity to safeguard all persons, but it is likely that this will positively impact 
the young, elderly and vulnerable as they are more susceptible to defects 
commonly reported to the council (e.g. damp, slips, trips, falls, overcrowding, 
inadequate heating and poor ventilation). 

 

1.3 Environmental Services has been awarded budget growth of £0.118m from 

2017/18. This will fund a new Street Czar post (£0.038m), as well as address 

existing budget pressures (£0.080m). There are no associated equalities 

implications.  

 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND RESIDENTS 
SERVICES POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
30 JANUARY 2017 

 

STREET CLEANLINESS AND RECYCLING 
 

Report of the  Director for Cleaner, Greener and Cultural Services 
 

Open Report. 
 

Classification - For Policy & Accountability Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 

 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Report Author: Kathy May – Head of Waste and 
Street Enforcement 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 (7341 5616) 
E-mail: kathy.may@rbkc.gov.uk  

 
 
1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. A report was submitted to this Committee on 4 April 2016 that outlined 

activity in tackling increased dumping and maintaining clean streets. This 
report provides an update.  

 
1.2. It takes into account recommendations from the Street Cleansing Futures 

Board work streams: Communication, Performance, and Waste storage, as 
well as outcomes from previous PAC reports.  

 
1.3. In addition, Serco has undertaken a wide-ranging review of their 

performance. This has resulted in an Action Plan or ‘Road Map’, which is 
being merged with actions arising from the LBHF Futures Board 
workstreams. 

 
1.4. The Contracts and Enforcement Team and Corporate Communications 

Team have also inputted, as have residents and some community groups 
(eg Avonmore Resident Association). Their activity to reduce flytipping, 
change behaviour, and increase recycling, is also summarised in this 
report. 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 5

mailto:kathy.may@rbkc.gov.uk


1.5. Whilst there is no room for complacency, early indications show the 
combined results of the above activities are having a positive impact on the 
street scene. 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the PAC note the information contained in this report and make such 
comments as it feels appropriate. 

 
3.  INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

3.1. A report was submitted to this Committee on 4 April 2016 that gave an 
update on the issues raised at previous PAC meetings, including how to 
tackle increased dumping and maintain clean streets. 

 
3.2. In parallel, a Futures Board was held by the Leader on 21 March, 

comprising Members, cross departmental officers, and some stakeholder 
representatives. As an outcome, three workstreams were established with 
the aim of embedding continuous improvement in street cleansing: 
Performance Management, Communications and Behaviour Change, and 
Urban Design and Storage. This report gives feedback on progress with 
those workstreams. 

 
3.3. Increases in rubbish dumping has been experienced at a national level. 

This has led to the creation of an All Party Parliamentary Group which met 
in October 2016. The group was led by Jim Fitzpatrick MP and Keep Britain 
Tidy (KBT) and the KBT Action Plan is attached at Appendix A. Officers 
have reported previously the increase in flytips for during 15/16. Whilst in 
the first half of 2016/17 the upward trend continued, it is encouraging to 
note the slight downward trend as outlined in paragraph 4.10.  It should 
also be borne in mind that increased awareness of digital reporting 
mechanisms on the part of the public could explain some of the previous 
increases in reports received. 

 
4.  PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

4.1 INTENSIVE AREA BASED INTERVENTIONS 
 

Officers have injected significant resource into a wide range of 
interventions to reduce the rubbish dumping problem in three areas of the 
borough – Lakeside, Avonmore and Sinclair Roads. The experiments have 
led to some positive putcomes.  

 
4.2 Sinclair Road 
4.2.1 Waste Storage  
 Officers have worked with residents on Sinclair Road to reduce unsightly 

waste whilst providing an adequate collection system for Serco.  This has 
led to visible improvements and new storage areas.Officers continue to 
work with residents and Serco to address other issues such as poor access 
for the refuse crews or inadequate storage for the volume of waste being 

Page 25



generated. A simple storage guideline is also being finalised to provide 
landlords and homeowners with the most practical solutions to securely 
store waste outside their properties.  
 

4.3 Avonmore Road 
 HMO Licensing and planning storage 
4.3.1Improved joint working has resulted in the co-ordination of enforcement 

investigations identifying possible HMOs or properties acting as vacation 
rental and short term letting platforms.  These are passed to both Planning 
and Private Land Environmental Health for investigation.  Equally, any 
change to Planning is sent to waste officers to ensure sufficient storage 
arrangements. 

 
 Active resident engagement 
4.3.2 Residents have provided invaluable input with information to officers 

allowing more targeted resources where required.  For example, litterbins 
have been installed where litter is shown to be an issue such as outside 
Tesco, Hammersmith Road, and Marcus Garvey Park, and investigations 
have occurred into holiday let properties and possible HMOs.  
 

4.4 Lakeside Road 
  Reduced bulky waste fee 
4.4.1 A reduced fee of £10 was introduced for Lakeside Road in June 2015.  

Initially there was no noticeable increase in take up of the reduced fee or a 
decrease in flytips. However, in February 2016, enforcement officers 
provided the area Housing Officer with disposal information for incoming 
and outgoing tenants.  Additionally, Serco started a twice daily clearance in 
June 2015 from the road so fewer flytips are reported by the public Whilst  
this does not necessarily mean that the number of dumps have reduced, 
the fact that the rubbish is being cleared quickly should help to improve 
public perception. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



Use of CCTV 
4.4.2 Additional overt cameras are being procured for targeted fly tipping issues 

and they will be available mid-January.  Installing another two cameras 
should greatly increase our chances of getting useful intelligence.  We still 
would not be able to cover the entire street but the Street Csar will visit the 
site with the Enforcement team to establish the most useful locations.    

 
It should be borne in mind, though, that many residents see CCTV as the 
solution to rubbish dumping problems as they (understandably) believe it 
will easily identify perpetrators, and enable easy enforcement. However, 
this is often not the case: cameras may not be pointing in the right direction 
to catch dumping as it occurs (especially for random sites rather than 
regular hotspot locations); if people are seen dumping rubbish, cameras 
often do not pick up where they came from; vehicle number plates may not 
be visible. Nonetheless, there are successes so it is worth using the 
resources we have appropriately (and within strict legal guidelines) to deter 
this anti-social behaviour.  

 
4.5 OUTCOMES FROM THE THREE FUTURES BOARD WORKSTREAMS 
 

The Action Grid from the three workstreams is now being implemented and 
is attached as Appendix B. The previous actions from PAC are 
incorporated into the workstreams from Futures Board. 

 
4.6 SERCO IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 
4.6.1 There has been intense focus on working with Serco to identify issues and 

to develop an improvement plan. The Commercial Director and his team 
are also involved. Following Serco’s in-depth analysis of the issues, they 
summarised the proposed actions and worked with us to prioritise them in a 
‘Benefits / Difficulty’ matrix, and prepared an implementation timeline Gantt 
chart (Appendix C).  

 
4.6.2 A key change that is currently being investigated is the potential to change 

our approach to clearing rubbish dumps. Currently reports pass through 
Street Enforcement for investigation, and are then referred on to Serco to 
clear, adding a delay. As evidence that would enable prosecution is not 
found in most cases, we would like to change this process so that reports 
go direct to Serco to clear within 48 hours. This option will be more 
effective in clearing dumps. 

 
4.7 CURRENT STANDARDS, OFFICER PERCEPTION, AND COMPLAINT 

TRENDS 
 

4.7.1 The latest NI195 scores provide evidence of improved performance      
compared to last year, are within the 3% target, and compare very 
favourably to other London Boroughs. 

Summary of Results 
NI195 Score  

Litter  Detritus  Graffiti  Fly-posting  

This tranche T2 2016-17  0.99%  1.55%  2.96%  1.81%  

Page 27



Previous tranche T1 2016-17  1.48%  0.86%  2.63%  1.48%  
(Low scores are good and so these results were positive overall with generally B+ or B 

scores for litter and detritus).  
 

4.7.2 Officer perception concurs with these scores in that generally litter does not 
seem to be a significant issue (although it is acknowledged that there are 
hotspot areas that are problematic for litter), but that rubbish dumping is the 
bigger problem. LBHF officers have raised this at a London-wide level 
through LedNet (London Environment Directors’ network), and are leading 
on two projects: Urban design and landlord responsibility, and 
Communications about rubbish dumping.  

 
4.7.3 As part of the Improvement Plan, a Street Czar has been appointed to 

oversee areas of activity, engaging the community in helping to address the 
issues (see attached press release, attached as Appendix D). 

 
4.7.4 Enquiries are continually increasing as the Council make it easier to report 

issues.  There are now over 5,500 registered users of the H&F Report It 
app although it should be noted that this has added to the number of 
reports rather than achieving channel shift. 

 

 
 
4.7.5 Flytipping continues to be the main reason for reporting street cleansing 

enquiries.  The table below shows the number of reports for April to 
November 2016. 

Page 28



 
 
 
4.7.6 November showed the first signs of a significant drop in reported enquiries.  

It coincides with Serco introducing their process improvements.  The 
number of reported enquiries also corresponds with a drop in flytipping 
which we are currently experiencing and in November this fell below last 
year’s figures (see graph below). 

 

 
 
4.7.8 Officers are also adopting the ‘Better Letters’ style of writing to improve our 

responses to residents, so they are friendly in style, and more easily 
understood. We are also seeing how we can improve our digital 
engagement with our public through a new approach to a Social Media 
platform, being led by the Transformation and Agilisys team. 

 

Page 29



4.8 NIGHT-TIME ENFORCEMENT PROJECT 
 
4.8.1 This project has so far worked well and a progress report is attached at 

Appendix E. Highlights include a reduction in dumped black bags, new or 
upgraded Trade Waste contracts, and an increase in Fixed Penalty Notices 
as shown in the below graph and table: 

 
 

Revenue Received   

New & Amended Contracts £49,274 

Section 34 FPNs £4,440 

Section 87 FPNs £800 

Section 47 FPNs £540 

Total £55,054 

  
 
4.9 ENFORCEMENT   
 
4.9.1 The role of the Enforcement team has been under review. Other West 

London Alliance (WLA) boroughs are revisiting their approach to 
enforcement over the next six months, and so we can see if there are any 
opportunities to do some joint working, or commissioning of certain 
aspects, e.g. small-scale anti-littering exercises. 

 
4.9.2 Meanwhile the Enforcement team will implement a new approach to 

investigations by focusing on hotspot areas. This would allow officers to 
apply resources where needed rather than patrolling areas where there is 
limited enforcement action to be taken. 

 
4.9.3 The intention is to have some high-profile enforcement patrols, combined 

with some covert patrols.  
 

 

 

 

Page 30



4.10 RECYCLING UPDATE 

4.10.1 The following table shows recycling performance comparisons across  the 
same months from 2015/16 and 2016/17. This shows that recycling has 
increased every month except one, which is excellent given the trend in 
many authorities for flatlining or even lower recycling rates.  

Month 

Recycling 

Rate 
2015/16 

Recycling 

Rate 
2016/17 

Recycling 
Rate 
change (+ 
is good) 

April 21.66% 22.39% 0.73% 

May 18.33% 19.17% 0.84% 

June 23.24% 22.37% -0.87% 

July 20.81% 21.90% 1.09% 

Aug 18.18% 18.87% 0.70% 

Sept 24.29% 25.65% 1.35% 

Oct 19.69% 19.89% 0.20% 

Nov 21.72% 22.72% 1.00% 

 
4.10.2 Other initiatives to improve recycling  include: 

 Doorstepping programme developed and implemented 

 Nappy Natters events promoted and developed, resulting in increased 
attendance and addition of SWAP events   

 MRF (WRWA recycling facility) tours introduced for residents 

 Communications strategy developed and work on new communications 
materials commenced 

 Commenced project on estate based working, aimed at establishing a 
better working relationship and communication channel amongst all 
stakeholders on recycling matters. Commenced with Peabody, with 
intention of developing a model to roll out across Housing 
Associations.  Now working with Housing and Pinnacle. 

 Commenced Green Rewards programme, aimed at behavioural 
change.  Programme extended for 9 months from July 2016.  

 Produced draft waste action strategy, aimed at delivering a 2% 
increase in recycling rate per annum, for 4 years. 

 

6. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  

6.1 To summarise, the following approach is being adopted: 
 

i. Implement the joint Serco and LBHF Improvement Plan 
ii. Review the ‘clear all’ approach to rubbish dump clearances 
iii. Implement outcomes from the Futures Board three workstreams 

(Performance, Communications, and Landlord responsibility), and merge 
with the Serco Improvement (Action) Plan 

iv. Promote the work of the Street Czar who will engage the community, and 
improve the most effective use of CCTV 

Page 31



v. Review Street Scene Enforcement model and opportunities that may exist 
through the WLA 

vi. Improve digital engagement with our public through a new approach to a 
Social Media platform  

vii. Continue to investigate rubbish dumping as part of core business within 
the Contracts and Enforcement team, but trying new approaches such as 
more focused patrols rather than necessarily investigating individual 
reports (links to (ii) above) 

viii. Implement the decision regarding the level of enforcement fines for the 
offence of dumping on the public highway Sec. 33Z 

   
7 CONSULTATION 

7.1 Officers are working with Serco to plan actions to address their customer 
satisfaction survey results. Headline results indicate an average 
satisfaction level of over 75% to waste and street cleansing services.   

 
8 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 There are no specific legal implications arising out of this report. 
 
8.2 Implications completed by: Babul Mukherjee, Senior Solicitor (Contracts) 

0207 361 3410  
 

9 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 This report deals with the outcomes of projects which were previously 
approved and have now been implemented.  There are no financial 
implications arising from them.  The only new financial proposal is to 
implement an increased fine for the dumping of household waste for which 
approval is being sought separately.   
 

9.2 Comments provided by Mark Jones, Director for Finance 020 8753 6700.  
 
10  IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 
 
10.1 Although there are no changes currently planned for the provision of the 

core commercial waste service, there are questions around the clear-all 
service, rubbish dumping, and street cleansing which may impact on 
business perception and enforcement of commercial waste. 

 
11    RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
11.1 The assessment and management of environmental risk is central to the 

Council’s core risk management objectives. The report analyses and 
explains the possible consequences in a given situation where 
environmental risks will occur eg. Fly Tipping and their likely impacts on the 
local population and the potential secondary impacts. The review and 
critique suggests risk improvements and management approaches to 
further mitigate risk within the given scenarios. 

Page 32



 
Implications verified by: Michael Sloniowski, Shared Services Risk 
Manager telephone 020 8753 2587.  

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. None   

 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A Keep Britain Tidy Action Plan 
Appendix B Action Grid from the three workstreams  
Appendix C Serco Improvement Plan 
Appendix D Street Czar – press Release 
Appendix E Night time enforcement progress report  
 

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Futures Board Action Grid 

Stream Actions Agreed Next steps 
Contractor 
Performance   

1. Analyse what people want - outcomes and NOT operational solutions Customer Survey being 
undertaken by Serco 

 2. Gather data on complaints, compliments, current schedules, and incidents 
of service failures 

Serco report being 
compiled 

 3. Consider the appointment of a "Street Tsar" to trouble-shoot street based 
issues and act as a Champion for residents, building a picture of where 
there are failures in the system that cause ongoing and repeat complaints. 

Funding agreed in 
principle. Recruitment to 
commence November 

 4. Develop solutions and model new operational approaches that include IT 
innovations and a more flexible approach by Serco 

Serco report being 
compiled 

 5. With Serco, build an analytical model to allow some operations to be 
tasked on, potentially, a daily basis 

Options being considered 
1 December  

 6. Review contractual arrangements in parallel with the above, documenting 
any changes and working towards commercial sign off. 

Options being considered 
1 December 

 7. Consider incentives and penalties, transfer of risk and freedom to innovate 
as well as investment in technology, such as hand held mobile devices. 

Options being considered 
1 December 

Waste storage 8. Via its planning policies, improve and future-proof waste storage (e.g. for 
Old Oak Common) 

Ellen Whitchurch to 
comment 

 9. Provide much clearer waste storage guidance to residents Lesley Gates to follow up 

 10. Strengthen licensing regime and local HMO standards to ensure landlords 
take control of storage and disposal of their tenant’s waste 

Richard Buckley to 
comment on timings 

 11. Ensure housing and waste colleagues and contractors work more closely 
to resolve rubbish dumping issues 

Joint meetings been set 
up  

 12. Ensure that relevant findings from the London-wide waste storage project 
are applied locally 

London-wide project to 
launch end November  

 13. In partnership with Groundwork and Avonmore Residents Association, pilot 
communal waste storage solutions, including mini green roofs. 

Patrick McNab to update 

Clean Streets 
comms plan 

14. Research – a hackathon and focus groups Finalise detail with Leader  

 15. Brand and message development Finalise detail with Leader  

 Launch November: 

 Poster and digital advertising campaign (Exads) 

 Digital community organising 

 A social media campaign #HandFLitterCrackdown 

 Direct mails, news stories etc 

 Promotion of community projects 

Finalise detail with Leader  

 
 

P
age 38



1

Serco in Confidence

1

We have identified a comprehensive set of improvement 
ideas centred around 7 key themes

Workstream Improvement ideas

1. Street Scene Enforcement 2. Includes reduction in response time and enablement of reuse/recycling on flytip collection routes
3. Includes the improvement of the reporting mechanism (channel management) and street prioritisation

X.X LBHF led
[*] previously attempted / partially underway

X.X Joint initiatives
X.X Serco led

Optimise internal 
operations

1 1.1 Review street cleansing schedule to align w/ demand
1.2 Revise collection routes for domestic & trade waste
1.3 Improve end-to-end missed collections process

1.4 Improve end-to-end fly tipping process2

1.5 Optimise vehicle scheduling for improved 
maintenance

1.6 Improve scripting at call centre

Alter service 
provision

7 7.1 Optimise refuse collection service/scheduling to 
encourage recycling [*]

7.2 Offer garden and food waste services [*]

7.3 Plan partnership and HMO review (including waste 
contracts, size of bins) [*]

7.4 Enhance flytipping fast reaction squad3 [*]
7.5 Perform (radical) service re-design

Influence resident 
behaviour – Enforce

6
6.1 Put (more) signage in place to deter potential fly-

tippers [*]
6.2 Improve physical installations in flytipping hotspots
6.3 Add CCTV cameras near flytipping hotspots [*]
6.4 Increase volumes of on-the-spot flytipping fines [*]

6.5 Publicise enforcement measures and results
6.6 Continue the trade waste night time monitoring / 

increase the number of SSE1 officers [*]
6.7 Develop roles for Street Tsar
6.8 Develop roles for Town Keepers
6.9 Speed FPN process for flytipping

Influence resident 
behaviour – Educate

5 5.1 Optimise communication on one-pass carding system
5.2 Promote organisations reusing unwanted items [*]
5.3 Use fleet signage to promote recycling/reuse [*]
5.4 Pilot a communication campaign to improve landlord 

and tenant waste behaviours

5.5 Incentivise residents and businesses to recycle [*]
5.6 Create a champion community / engage with VCS
5.7 Provide waste storage guidelines

Enhance use of 
technology

3 3.1 Implement weight sensors on the fleet
3.2 Provide communication tools to the crew

3.3 Identity alternatives/ enhancements to Confirm 
system including mobile enablement

3.4 Introduction of bin sensors [*]

Respond to ongoing 
customer feedback

4 4.1 Launch quarterly resident satisfaction surveys and 
develop process to close feedback loop [*]

4.2 Conduct residents focus groups
4.3 Analyse and decrease complaint response time 
(including Twitter and response time to collect flytipping)

4.4 Policy/ principles/ practice review
4.5 Communicate with residents (high standards with 

increased improvements requested)

Drive cultural change 
in Serco workforce

2 2.1 Implement CI infrastructure across the contract
2.2 Engage and grow our staff

P
age 39



2

Serco in Confidence

Workstream Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Jun Q3 Q4

2016 2017

Apr May Q1 Q2

Optimise internal 
operations

1

Alter service 
provision

7

Influence resident 
behaviour – Enforce

6

Influence resident 
behaviour – Educate

5

Enhance use of
technology

Respond to ongoing 
customer feedback

4

Drive cultural change 
in Serco workforce

2

2018

Review street cleansing schedule to align w/ demand1.1

Revise collection routes for domestic & trade wasteImprove end-to-end missed collections process1.3

Improve end-to-end fly tipping process1.4 Optimise vehicle scheduling for improved maintenance1.5Improve scripting at call centre1.6

Implement CI infrastructure across the contract2.1

Engage and grow our staff2.2

Provide communication tools to the crew3.2

Launch quarterly resident satisfaction survey and develop process to close feedback loop4.1

Conduct residents’ focus groups4.2

Analyse and decrease complaint response time (including Twitter)4.3

Promote organisations reusing unwanted items (e.g. Freecycle, etc.)5.2

Use fleet signage to promote recycling/ reuse5.3

Pilot a communication campaign to improve landlord and […]

Incentivise residents and businesses to recycle5.5

Improve physical installations in flytipping hotspots6.2

Add CCTV cameras near flytipping hotspots6.3

Increase volumes of on-the-spot fines6.4

Perform (radical) service re-design

Plan partnership and HMO review 7.3

Enhance flytipping fast reaction squad 7.57.4

Note: The initiatives that are ‘parked’ (see following slide) are not included in this timeline

Source: Team analysis

3

Optimise communication on one-pass carding system5.1

Develop roles for Town Keepers6.8

Put (more) signage in place to deter potential fly-tippers

1.2

Create a champion community / engage with VCS 5.45.6

6.1

Policy/ principles/ practice review4.4

Communicate with residents (high standards with increased improvements requested)4.5

Provide waste storage guidelines5.7

Speed FPN process for flytipping6.9

Develop roles for Street Tsar6.7

Identify alternatives/ enhancements to Confirm system including mobile enablement3.3

Continue the trade waste night time monitoring/ increase the number of SSE officers6.6

Publicise enforcement measures and results6.5

High-level transformation roadmap (2016 – 2018) 

P
age 40



3

Serco in Confidence

3

x Led by Serco x Led by LBHF x Led jointly

 Ideas with high benefit 
and low difficulty should 
be progressed as a matter 
of priority

 Ideas with lower benefit 
but low difficulty should be 
considered next for 
implementation (in line 
with other priorities)

 Ideas with high benefits 
but that are difficult to 
achieve will typically 
involve a business case 
review and/or pilot to 
determine how to progress

 Remaining ideas should be 
parked for the time being

Relative difficulty

High

Low

Easy
e.g. 1-6 months; 
minimal capex

Hard
e.g. 6-12+ months; 

high capex

Idea prioritisation matrix

“Park”

“Do now” “Review / pilot”

“Consider next”

We have prioritised these ideas in a four-quadrant matrix
R

e
la

ti
v
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
t

1.1

1.2

1.3
1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1 2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

7.1
7.2

7.3

7.4

6.9

7.5

7.4

1. Litter bins
2. Other bins

3

7.4
4

3.4

1

2

3. Improvement of the reporting mechanism (channel management)
4. Street prioritisation
5. Fast reaction squad

4.4

5.7

4.5

6.8

5

e.g. Implement CI 
infrastructure 
across the contract

e.g. Bin 
sensors

e.g. Add CCTV 
cameras near 
flytipping hotspots 

e.g. Analyse & decrease 
complaint response time 

P
age 41



4

Serco in Confidence

4

We have agreed on the initiatives to implement in priority

2016 2017

Nov Dec Jan

5.1 Optimise communication on one-pass carding system

2.1 Implement CI infrastructure across the contract

3.2 Provide communication tools to the crew

2.2 Engage and grow our staff

6.6 Continue the trade waste night time monitoring/ 
increase the number of SSE officers

4.4 Policy/ principles/ practice review

6.8 Develop roles for Town Keepers

PRIORITIES FOR THE NEXT 3 MONTHS

6.5 Publicise enforcement measures and results

6.2 Improve physical installations in flytipping hotspots

7.4 Enhance flytipping fast reaction squad

4.1 Launch quarterly resident satisfaction survey and 
develop process to close feedback loop

4.3 Analyse and decrease complaint response time (including Twitter)

6.7 Develop roles for Street Tsar

1.3 Improve end-to-end missed collections process

6.9 Speed FPN process for flytipping

3.3 Identity alternatives/ enhancements to Confirm system […]

1.4 Improve end-to-end fly tipping process

J
o

in
t 

in
it

ia
ti

v
e
s

S
E

R
C

O
C

O
U

N
C

IL

Launch OPM for refuse Launch OPM for out depots1

1. Ongoing activities: OPM for street cleansing at Bagley’s lane, Yellow Belt training delivered to all supervisors on 10-11/10
2. Ongoing review of the trade contract 

Trainings on Problem Resolution System New reward & recognition scheme Training plan

Radios provided to crew

Internal workshop Discussion with Council Pilot of the new system

Role definition Pilot

Launch OPM for refuse Workshop on ‘TO-BE’ processes

Workshop on ‘TO-BE’ processes

Residents survey signed off Preliminary results Final results

Analysis of the complaints on Twitter Process definition to answer complaints

Assess results and define new scope Monitor resultsImplement project extensions 

Pilot new processWorkshop on ‘TO-BE’ processes

Pilot new process

Action plan to be further discussed Draft Action plan defined

Workshop on ‘TO-BE’ processes Pilot new process

Define the role Recruit street tsars and pilot Monitor results

Research alternativesAS-IS analysis of Confirm Draft business case

P
age 42



Cleanest-ever streets in H&F – according to 
independent assessment… But we still expect 
better 

8 December 2016 

The streets of Hammersmith & Fulham are the cleanest they’ve ever been. That’s 
the finding of a recent independent survey by environment quality experts WYG. 

The latest street cleanliness survey results have shown that less than one per cent 
of the borough’s roads fell below acceptable standards during August to November 
this year. That compares to 18 per cent back in 2007. 

The fantastic news comes as Hammersmith & Fulham Council launches a huge new 
crackdown on rubbish dumping and street litter by appointing a Street Czar. 

“This independent assessment shows our work to drive up standards is paying off, 
but we expect much better and we’re determined to deliver even cleaner streets,” 
said Cllr Wesley Harcourt, H&F Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and 
Residents’ Services. 

“That’s why we’ve employed a new ‘Street Czar’ who will be dedicated to working 
with our residents in the community, to hear their concerns and ensure their issues 
are dealt with quickly and efficiently. 

“Our residents care and are passionate about the appearance of their 
neighbourhoods. We want to show them we care too.” 

Our new Street Czar 

The new Street Czar, Andy Stocker, will dedicate much of his time to working out in 
the community, meeting local residents, business and organisations, to hear their 
concerns, predict trouble spots and give people swift, efficient resolutions. He’s also 
a local resident from Fulham, so knows the borough well. 

“Our residents are great at getting in touch to let us know about litter or dumped 
rubbish, but until now, they’ve never had a human face to deal with. That’s where I 
come in,” said Andy. 

“We’re not a faceless bureaucracy. We want to work with our residents, so I will be 
their first point of contact and can’t wait to get started with them on getting our 
streets spotless.” 

Page 43



Andy will also be making better use of digital technology to help ensure we tackle 
issues quickly and effectively and keep our residents satisfied. 

Local residents are getting involved 

Patrick McNab, from Avonmore Residents’ Association, is working with the council to 
see how residents can help clear up mess in his neighbourhood. 

He said: "The council has committed staff who work each day to make Hammersmith 
& Fulham a cleaner, greener borough." 

“The council has also made it very easy for residents to take an active part in 
keeping the borough clean by providing the H&F Report It app.  Any resident using 
the camera on their phone may take a picture of the problem and report it to the 
council in less than two minutes" 

Working with you, for a cleaner 
borough 

We are going to raise our responsiveness to street cleaning to a new level. We will 
be more proactive, swifter and more effective. 

The new campaign for spotless streets will: 

 Work closely with you to understand your problems and provide solutions 
 Identify and tackle dumped rubbish ‘hot spots’ 
 Quickly remove dumped rubbish and other mess 
 Engage with you in person and on social media when issues arise 
 Monitor our waste contractors Serco to ensure minimum standards 
 Maximise use of digital technology to tackle environmental street issues. 

To report any environmental issues, you can download and use our handy Report It 
app. 

 

Page 44

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/report-it
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/reportit
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/reportit


1 
 

NIGHT TIME MONITORING UPDATE 

 
 
1.0  Background 
 
The night enforcement trial commenced in February 2016 aiming to address issues 
related to illegal rubbish dumping, fly-tipping of larger items and businesses that 
have no trade waste contracts. Four additional Contract Monitoring and Enforcement 
Officers (agency staff) were recruited to monitor businesses mainly in the North and 
South areas of the Borough. The officers looked at commercial businesses that were 
in breach of their trade waste agreements by overproducing and not paying the 
appropriate rate or by placing out rubbish for collection outside their allocated 
collection times.  
 
After the initial period of three months it was decided to reduce the number of 
officers to two. The two remaining officers continued to monitor the area in North 
whilst taking over the South.  
 
2.0  Where we are now 
 
To evaluate the success of the night enforcement trial we used data collected by 
Serco regarding the number of black sacks and overproduction for commercial 
businesses. In the first months of the night enforcement trial the results were 
showing great reduction in the areas monitored as shown in the chart below.  
 

 
 

During July and August, one of the officers was on annual leave, for health and 
safety reasons the other officer could not continue to monitor the areas on his own at 
night time.  
 

1992 

1258 

986 

591 
474 

875 

1147 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

Black Bags Monthly Comparison 

Page 45



2 
 

The sudden increase in July and August shows that when there are no officers 
available to monitor the areas and show their presence, the number of black bags 
will significantly go up.   
 
Reports from the officers and our contractor Serco show that a high number of black 
bags might be residential and not commercial however the origin is difficult is to 
determine.  
 

Revenue Received   

New & Amended Contracts £49,274 

Section 34 FPNs £4,440 

Section 87 FPNs £800 

Section 47 FPNs £540 

Total £55,054 

 
Between February and August commercial waste contracts were taken by 
businesses which generated £49,274  
 
90 fixed penalty notices were issued between February and August generating 
£5,780. 
  
15 fixed penalty notices were issued for Section 47, generating £540.  
 
48 fixed penalty notices were issued for Section 34. Eleven were paid producing 
£4440.  
 
27 fixed penalty notices were issued for Section 87 generating £800.  
 
Six cases were referred to the legal team to be considered for prosecution under 
Section 34 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. The night team officers are 
currently working on three other cases under Section 33, Section 87 and Section 47.  
 
The officers cover the area with the same enthusiasm as in the beginning and they 
developed a partnership with the Waste Contractor (Serco) which involves them 
liaising directly to identify businesses that do not have the correct trade waste 
arrangements in place. A high number of FPNs for Section 47 and 87 have been 
generated from information provided by Serco and the officers responding and 
investigating.  
 
Our night SSE officers have a proactive approach where they use their own initiative 
to tackle issues that they see rather than wait for a complaint to come through first. 
 
3.0  Improvements 
 
In order to successfully continue the night trial constant monitoring with continuous 
officers presence in the most problematic areas is required. When officers went on 
leave in July and August, it could be seen that the number of black bags increased.  
For this purpose we would need to look at what arrangements could be made to 
cover the period when officers are planning to go on annual leave.  

Page 46



3 
 

 
The night officers could also consider tackling residential waste. This has the 
potential to decrease the overall number of black bags and it could even bring down 
the total amount of waste tonnage. Furthermore, this could improve the overall 
aesthetic look of the areas tackled and could minimise the number of complaints that 
the day officers are receiving.   
 
There has been an 11% increase in night time tonnages, however, there is a 0.2% 
increase in tonnage collected overall.  It is believed that some weight has been 
moved to the night time collections due to commercial contracts being taken out.  
However, some of the businesses are reluctant to revise their contracts and tend to 
take a minimal contract as a formality whilst they constantly overproduce. Weighing 
scales could be provided to the officers to take initiative and advise businesses 
where they find evidence suggesting that the amount of trade waste placed in the 
bags significantly exceeds the allowed quantity.  
 
We also believe that night officers would likely refer approximately 5+ prosecution 
cases to the legal team in the next period. 
 
The number of fixed penalty notices would likely increase in the next period as the 
officers are targeting new areas in South where no previous fixed penalty notices 
where issues for Section 87s and 47s.  The new areas would include North End 
Road market where it has been requested that officers investigate illegal dumping by 
businesses in the market bins.  Several enquiries have been made to the 
Commercial waste team regarding new and amended contracts on North End Road 
as a direct result of the enforcement patrols. 
 
4.0 Future Provision 
The following table shows the cost of the night time team between February and 
August but does not include any cases which are scheduled for court (due 
November). 
 

 
  

Revenue from new contracts £49,274 

Revenue from fines £5,780 

Cost of officers -£48,751 

  Total £6,303 

 
So far the night time team can pay for themselves and therefore it is recommended 
the Council provide two 6 month temporary contracts to continue with commercial 
enforcement at night. 
 
Other benefits include cleaner streets, perception from businesses who do comply 
that action is being taken with those who don’t, improved perception of enforcement.  
If the ability to issue fines under Sec. 33 is approved, then domestic waste can also 
be investigated and enforcement action taken where residents do to comply with 
collection requirements. 

Page 47



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Item Report Author(s) Comments 

28 June 2016 – Policing, Crime and ASB 
 
 

 

Environmental Health Annual Report 2015-16 

To receive the Environmental Health annual report. 

Ann Ramage 
 

Noise Nuisance Prevention and Busking 

To hear about, and comment upon, the services which prevent and 
tackle noise nuisance, and to consider the council’s approach to 
busking. 

Richard Buckley 
 

Strategic Assessment for Crime and ASB 2016/17 

The 2015/16 Assessment was brought to the PAC in November 
2015. The aim of this item is to allow Councillors to comment on and 
influence the priorities 

Claire Rai/Duncan 
Smith 

 

Policing / Community Safety 

To consider joint working between the Police and Council, the work 
of the council funded police officers and how the police involve 
residents in their work. 

Dave Page / Claire 
Rai 

 

CCTV / RIPA 

To consider how well the current network is working (particularly in 
assisting the police) and also to get an idea on what plans there are 
to expand the coverage. 

 

 

 

 

Janette Mullins / 
Andy Stocker 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 6



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 2 of 5 
 

21 September 2016 – Gang Violence and Greening the Borough 
 
 

 

Environmental Planning Requirements 

How is the Council ensuring maximum value for residents from large-
scale developments in the borough? How is the impact on the 
environment being mitigated? 

Matt Butler 
 

Ending Gang Violence and Exploitation Strategy  

What problems does Hammersmith and Fulham have with gangs and 
youth violence? How does the gangs and youth violence strategy aim 
to tackle these? How will we know if it has been successful? 

Claire Rai 
 

Air Quality Commission 

Draft Report for Public Comments 

Peter Smith 
 

16 November 2016 – Sport and Leisure 
 
 

 

Biodiversity in Hammersmith and Fulham 

To consider the council’s work to improve biodiversity, including work 
in parks and tackling air pollution. Also to consider how the council 
involves its residents in increasing biodiversity. 

Richard Buckley 
 

Sport and Leisure Strategy 

To consider the proposed new sport and leisure strategy, and ensure 
that it includes the best work done in other boroughs and reflects the 
aspirations of the borough’s residents and sports clubs. 

Dave Page / Jardine 
Finn 

 

Sports Grounds Safety Report 

To understand the work of Environmental Health officers in ensuring 
that sports grounds are safe for spectators. 

Ann Ramage 
 

P
age 49



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 3 of 5 
 

30 January 2017 – Waste and the Council’s Budget 
 
 

 

Future Waste and Street Cleansing Services – Involving the 
Citizen  

To receive an update on the work which has been done to improve 
the Council’s Waste and Street Cleansing Services. 

Sue Harris / Kathy 
May 

 

Draft Budget 

To review the 2016/17 budget for the departments. Senior officers 
are to discuss the major areas of challenge for their services and 
highlight areas for scrutiny.  

Mark Jones / Senior 
Officers 

 

 

1 March 2017 –  Hammersmith Gyratory, Cycling, School Travel 
Planning, Cemeteries and Registrars  

 
 

 

Hammersmith Gyratory Better Junctions Scheme 

To Consider the outcome of the consultation and to give views on the 
revised proposals. 

Nick Boyle  

Cycling Update 

To consider progress made against the cycling strategy. 

Richard Duffill  

Cemeteries 

To consider the council’s cemetery provision. 

Dave Page  

Registrars 

To discuss the services offered by the registry office. 

Dave Page   

 

24 April 2017 –  Commercial Waste and Parking 
 
 

 

Commercial Waste Sue Harris / Kathy  

P
age 50



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 4 of 5 
 

To consider the commercial waste service offered by the council. May 

 

Parking 

To consider the improvements made to parking services. 

David Taylor / Nick 
Boyle 

 

School Travel Planning 

To consider the work done by the council to help get children to and 
from schools safely. 

Richard Evans  

28 June 2017 (Provisional Date)  
 

 

20 mph Zones 

To consider the implementation of additional 20mph zones in the 
borough. 

Nick Boyle 
 

Highway Maintenance 

To consider the Highway Maintenance programme and the 
effectiveness of the service. 

Ian Hawthorn  

Parks 

To talk about the options for the management of the borough’s parks. 

Dave Page / Ullash 
Karia 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 51



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 5 of 5 
 

CSERS PAC REMIT:- 

 Transport, including roads maintenance, other transport infrastructure 

 Parking policy, traffic management and the relationship with TfL 

 Planning policy and performance and the impact of developments on transport infrastructure and the environment 

 The local environment  

 Street Scene 

 Parks and open spaces 

 Recycling and environmental sustainability 

 Waste disposal, street cleansing, refuse collection  

 Cemeteries 

 Biodiversity 

 Quality of life 

 Community safety 

 Tackling anti-social behaviour 

 Licensing and gambling 

 Neighbourhood governance 

P
age 52


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 2017 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
	Appendix 1 - Savings and Growth Proposals
	Appendix 2 - Risks
	Appendix 3 - Fees and Charges not Increasing at the Standard Rate
	Appendix 4 - Equality Impact Assessment

	5 Street Cleanliness and Recycling
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E

	6 Work programme and dates of future meetings

